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To the Members of Sandhar Technologies Barcelona S.L
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

4

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sandhar Technologies Barcelona S.L
(“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the period for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein
referred to as ‘Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2021, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include
the

. Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. gpmmiiiay
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance ,
Consolidated other comprehensive income, Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; and making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Boards of Directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a-going concern. If




we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. 1

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group, for Ind AS, have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in Spain and the auditor SW Audit Control has issued
unqualified audit report dated 14™ May 2021. The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been adjusted for adjustments pursuant to conversion of the books of account maintained under Local
Laws to Indian Accounting Standards and conversion from local currency i.e. EURO to Indian Rupees as
explained under Note 2 under Basis of Preparation. We have relied on the English translation of the
transactions from local language. In our opinion, the Company has maintained proper books of account
insofar as appears from our examination of those books.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For M S Goyal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

All amount in INR lacs

Particulars T As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 16,284.7% 15,953 .45
Right-of-use assets 3 6,343.83 5,964 .62
Capital work-in-progress 716.19 975.99
Intangible assets 4 410.72 79.23
Consolidated Goodwill 0.95 0.95
Financial assets

- loans 5 20581 170.39
Other non-current assets 7 135.68 23.05
Total non-current assets 24,097.93 23,167.68

Current assets

Inventories 6 7,688.14 7,389.52
Financial assets

Loaps 5 1,374.46 897.77
~Trade receivables 5 4,158.36 2,898.22
- Cash and cash equivalents 5 358.80 147.83
Other current assets 7 926.80 554.52
Tatal current assets 14,506.56 11,887.86
Tolal assels 38,604.49 35,055.54
_Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 8 2,14337 2,143.37
Other equity
- Retained earnings 9 1,391.04 1,031.81
- Other reserves 9 980.17 947.11
Total equity 4,514.58 4,122.29
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 10 9,923.09 897.55
- Other financial liabilities 13 195.96 375.78

Lease Liability 13 6,305.05 5,719.58
Deferred tax liabilities {net) 601.51 602.96
Total non current liabilities ' 17,025.61 7,625.87
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 10 7,073.75 14,712.93
- Trade payables 11 5,885.71 5,144.47
- Other financial liabilities 13 2,729.32 2,030.81
- Lease Liability 13 489.83 65937
Other current liabilities 12 885.69 759.80
Total current liabilities 17,064.30 23,307.38
Total equity and liabilities 38,604 A9 35,055.54
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.5
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As pur vut review tepurl of eeen dale
For M S Goyal & Assaciates For and on behalf of
Chartered Accquri"tants Vo Ray Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
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Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

All amount in INR lacs

particulars N For the year ended For the year ended
253 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
I

REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 14 26,704.856 29,074.03
Other Income 15 154,22 3.28
Total Revenue (1) 26,859.08 29,077.31
1l EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 16 6,900.37 6,365.64
{Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in- 16 101.55 1,072.21
progress, scrap and components
Employee Benefits Expense 17 6,559.01 6,374.59
Finance Costs 20 661.53 750.06
Depreciation and amortization expense 18 2,358.51 2,134.24
Other Expenses 19 9,929.05 11,740.36
Total expenses {Il) 26,510.02 28,437.10
1] Profit/{loss) before exceptional itema and tax (i-11) 345.06 640.21
Exceptional item
% Profit/{loss) before tax 349,06 640.21
v Tax expense:
(1) Current tax (10.20) 75.62
(2) Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 0.03 16.73
wvi Profit (Loss) far the period (IV-V) 359.23 547.86
A Other Comprehensive Income
a. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of 44.08 280.46
foreign operations
-Income tax relating to above (11.02) (70.12)
Total Other Comprehensive Income 33.06 210,34
VI Total Comprehensive Income for the periad (ViAvil) 392.29 758.20
I1X Earnifigs per equity share:
(1) Basic 21 11.06 16.87
(2) Diluted 21 11.06 16.87 |
Summary of significant accounting policies 25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our review report of even date

For M S Goyal & Associates For and on behalf of
Chartered Accountants n e, Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated

FRY: 011372N .7
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Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
All amount in INR lacs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1 Profit Before Tax 349 06 64021
2 Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,358.51 2,134.24
{Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets (4.06) -
Ind-AS adjustment of Lease (402.23)
Interest expense 661.53 750.06
3 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (1+2) 3,365.04 3,122.28
4 Change in Working Capital:
{Excluding Cash & Bank Balances)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 33.06 210.34
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (1,260.14) 546 .09
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories {298.62) 1,027.39
Decrease/{Increase) in long-term loans and advances {148.05) (19.77)
Decrease/(Increase) in short-term loans and advances and other current assets {848.98) 509.40
Increase/{Decrease) in trade payables 74124 (813.04)
Increase/{Decrease) in other long term liabilities 37565 5,527.71
Increase in other current liabilities 465.54 {10.37)
Change in Working Capital {940.30) 6,977.75
S Cash Generated From Operations (3+4) 2,424.74 10,100.03
6 Less : Taxes paid (8.72) (10.04)
7 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities {5-6) 2,433.46 10,110.07
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (3,260.30) {9,498.40)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 123.66 79.50 :
Bank deposits {having original maturity of more than 3 months) - 31.65
Net Cash Generated/(Used) in Investing Activities: (3,136.64) (9,387.25),
C Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Repaymenl of long-Lerm borrowings {540,60) |650.92)
Praceeds fioim Jong-term borrowings 9,755.46 654,53
{Repayment)/ procceds trom short term borrowings (net) (7,639.18) 24,24
Finance costs paid {661.53): (750.06)
Net Cash Generated/(Used) from Financing Activities: 914.15 (662,11}
] Net Change in Cash & cash equivalents
{A+B+C) 21097 60.72
E-1 Cash & cash equivalents as at end of the year 358,80 147.83
E-2 Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of year 14783 87.12
Notes:

1. The standalone cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as set out on Indian Accounting Standard -7 on "Statement on Cash Flows "

2. Refer note 2.5 for significant accounting policies.

3, Amendment to Ind AS 7: Effective 1 April 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
these standalone financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes,
suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure
requirement The adnaption nf amendment did not have any materisl impact on the standalone tinancial statemaents.

The accompanylng notes are an integral part ¢f the consclidated financial stateivieits
As per our review report of even date
For M S Goyal & Associates For and on behalf of

Chartered Accountants - Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
FRN: 011372N N
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Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL. Consolidated

Notes

(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

1.

to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Group Activity

Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, S.L., (the dominant company hereinafter STB) was incorporated under the
denomination Meplerson, SL the 18" May 2007. On 17" July 2007, the board approved the change of the name to
the current one.

On the same day of purchase, 18" May 2007, STB purchased the 100% of the stakes of Breniar Project, SL,
(hereinafter Breniar) incorporated the 25"April 2007 and remained inactive until it was purchased. On the 1%
August 2007 Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, S.L., in the name of STL, in public writing fulfilled the order of
the courts and purchased the assets of TECFISA, and Breniar purchased the assets of VETEC, subrogating each
one its lease and labour contracts.

On the 6th August 2012 Sandhar Technologies Barcelona SL has acquired Arding Investments sp. zo.o. (100
shares, 100% of the company equity), which later became Sandhar Technologies Poland sp. z o.0., (hereinafter
STP) taking over the employees of a former subcontractor of STB.

On December 2014 STB acquired the shares of Sandhar Technologies de México S de RL de CV (hereinafter
STM), by increasing the equity of the company.

On 4th March 2021 Sandhar Technologies Ro, SRL (hereinafter STR) was incorporated, being STB its sole
shareholder.

The main activity of the group, formed by STB, the head of the group and dominant company is the manufacture
of aluminium high pressure die cast parts for the automotive sector.

Consolidation is done with the global integration method.

None of the companies of the group is listed.

2. Principles of Conversion of the Financial Statement from IGAAP to Indian GAAP
2.1 The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 based on the material accounting policies of the Parent
Company and after translating the reporting currency of STB group i.e. Euro to Indian Rupees, following the
principles for translation of the financial statements of Non-Integral Foreign operations as laid down in the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 21 viz. The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has
prepared its consolidated financial statements on the reporting package of the Parent Company.
S. Name of the Subsidiary Company | Nature of | Ownership in % either directly or | Country  of
No. relation through subsidiaries Incorporation
As at As at
| mo 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
1. Sandhar Technologies Barcelona | Parent 100 100 Spain
S.L. (STB) Company
A | Breniar Project, SL (BP) Subsidiary 100 100 Spain
B Sandhar Technologies Poland sp. | Subsidiary 100 100 Poland
700 (STP)
C Sandhar ‘l'echnologies de Mexico S | Subsidiary 100 100 Mexico
de RL de CV (STM)
D Sandhar Technologies Ro SRL Subsidiary 100 - Romania
(w.e.f. 4 March 2021)

Functional currency of the Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, S.1., i.e. Euro has been translated into the reporting
currency of the STL i.e. Indian Rupees as under

< All assets and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year.
% Items in Statement of Profit & Loss arc converted at the period average rate.

RN
NC



Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL. Consolidated
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.4.1

< Share capital has been converted on the rate prevailing at the date of investment.
% Reserves & Surplus is the balance derived from statement of Profit & Loss for each year, hence has been
converted at average exchange rate for the period.
% The resulting exchange difference is accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal of
net investment.
< Functional currency i.e. Euro has been converted into repotting currency i.e. INR as under:-
- Closing rate at 8§5.9611
- Opening rate at 82.2958
- Average Period rate during the year at 8§6.4382

Consolidated financial Statements of the STB Group has been audited by SW Audit Control and submitted their
report dated 14" May 2021. Consolidation of the accounts of STB (Group) has been done under the global
integration method. e.g.
% Elimination of Investment and arriving of goodwill on consolidation, Capital Reserve on Consolidation.
% Elimination of income from Intercompany transactions.
% Elimination of intercompany dividends.
» Eliminations of credit/debit balances arising from operations or financial transactions between group
companies.
% Eliminations of expenses and revenue arising from intercompany transactions.

In view of different set of environments in which the Subsidiaries operate, the accounting policies followed for
estimated useful life of the components of the fixed assets and its determination of depreciation on fixed assets is
different from the accounting policies of the Company. This variation is in the nature of estimation of the useful
life. However, depreciation on fixed assets has been calculated under Straight Line Method which is in accordance
with the accounting policy of the Parent Company. (Amount involved is Rs. 22.93 Crore)

Further, inventory of Spare Parts has been valued at Cost whereas spare parts are valued at lower of Cost or NRV
as per the accounting policy of the Parent Company. In the opinion of the Management, impact of this different
accounting is negligible in view of the in-house consumption of the spare parts. (Amount involved is Rs 35.27
Crore).

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’), read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions
of the Act.

Effective 1 April 2016, the Company had transitioned to Ind AS while the financial statements were being
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (previous GAAP) till 31 March
2017 and the transition was carried out in accordance of Ind AS 101 "First time adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards". While carrying out transition, in addition to the mandatory exemptions, the Company had elected to
certain exemption which are listed as below:

a) Business Combination:
Company has opted for exemption under Ind AS 101 with respect to Business Combinations whereby Company

has elect not to apply Ind AS 103 retrospectively to past business combinations i.e. to (business combinations that
occurred before the date of transition to Ind ASs).

b) Deemed cost exemption on Property, Plant and Equipment
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant

and equipment and investment property as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind
AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making



Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL. Consolidated
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities This exemption can also be used for intangible assets
covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at
their previous GAAP carrying value.

¢) Leases:

Ind AS 101 permits that if there is any land lease newly classified as finance lease then the first time adopter may
recognise assets and liability at fair value on that date; and any difference between those fair values is recognized
in retained earnings.

Company has therefore classified land leases with multi decade lease periods as finance lease as on transition
date.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) in lakhs, except when otherwise
indicated.

(iii) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are in accordance
with the accounting policies of the Parent Company i.e. Sandhar Technologies Ltd. The accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are consistent with those of the previous year
except for items prescribed under Note on first time adoption of Ind AS for e.g., goodwill, grant. Consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on the reporting package of the Parent Company.

(v) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
cstimatcs and assumptions that affcct tho reported amounts of revenues, expenscs, asscts and liabilitics, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. These include recognition and measurement
of financial instruments, estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible assets, valuation of inventories, measurement of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units,
measurement of employee benefits, actuarial assumptions, provisions etc.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Company continually evaluates these
estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.

(v} Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fie valoes, for hoth
financial and non-financial assets and liahilities.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.



Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

2.5

a.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

# In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipment
(i} Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price, non-refundable taxes purchase
taxes, duties or levies, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any other directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which it is located. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an
asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labor, any other costs dircetly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and
cstimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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The Company does not adjust exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term foreign
currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset to the cost of the asset but charges
the same to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such gain/loss arises.

A property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the consolidated financial statements on disposal or when no
further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are
generally stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value. Any gain or losses arising disposal
of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of

profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(i) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost, net of
their estimated residual values, over the estimated useful lives and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The identified components are depreciated over their useful life, the remaining asset is depreciated over the

life of the principal asset.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided at the rates of the Spanish Tax Tables.

Asset Current Year
STB STM STP
Foundry Machinery 556% 5% N/A
Machining Machinery 714% 7.14% N/A
Other Machinery 10% = -
Installations 5% 5% 10%
Furniture & Fixtures 5% 5% 10%
Vehicles - 10% 14%
Computers 25% 25% 25%
Dics, Tools, and Instruments 16.67% 20% 10%
h. Activities with environment incidence

The costs of acquisition of equipment, systems or installations for the elimination, reduction or control of the
possible environment impacts of the business are capitalized as environment fixed assets. The rest of expenses are
accounted as expenses of the period.
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C.

Intangible assets

(i) Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Amortization

Intangible assets consist of software purchased by the Company which is amortised on a pro-rata to the period of
use over 4 years on a straight-line basis in all companies.

- Goodwill
Goodwill is not amortized but will be tested for impairment annually.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Amortization method, useful lives and residual lives are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted,
if appropriate.

Leases

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 w.e.f. 01 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach and
therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17.

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 — Ind AS 116

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

As a lessee —

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases [or land and buildings. The Company, at the
inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a consideration. This
policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered on or after | April 2019.

The Company elected to use the following practical expedients on initial application:

- Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a
similar end date.

- Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of
Icasc term on the date of initial application.

- Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.
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- Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind
AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful
life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate. The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from
various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the
asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in
an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for
early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a
revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-usc asset has been
reduced to zero.

Short-term leases- The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-
teru leases. The Company recoguises the lease payments associaled wills iese leases as an expeinse vn 4 strdight-
line basis over the lease term.

Policy applicable before 1 April 2019 — Ind AS 17

(i) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is hased on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement
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(i1)

is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets,
even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consideration
required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of
their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments
reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognized at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset.
The liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognized using the
incremental borrowing rate.

Assets held under lease

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance
with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the assets are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies applicable to similar owned assets. Assets held under leases that do
not transfer to the Company substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership (i.e. operating lease) are not
recognized in the Company’s Balance Sheet.

(iii) Lease payments

Operaling lease payments are not straight lined in cases where the escalation is expected to increase in line with
the expected general inflation to compensate tor the lessor’s expected inflationary cost.

Payments made under finance lcasc arc allocated between the outstanding liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs), amortization of ancillary costs
incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost ot the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they are incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUSs.
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An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an individual asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a
corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses of
continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,
except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the
impairment is recognized in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

In regard to assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior period, the Company reviews at cach
reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

(rondwill is tested tor impairment annually at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

g. Government grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates 1o an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended (o compensale, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset.
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When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of
the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments.

h. Inventories

Work in progress, Raw materials, sub-assemblies and components including goods in transit are carried at lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on ‘first in first out’ basis.

Stores and spare parts are valued at cost.
Finished goods are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

e Raw materials and components: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of raw material, components, stores and spares is
determined on first in, first out basis.

e Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on first in, first out
basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realizable value of work-in-progress is
determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis
Moulds done for the clients

The expenses for moulds to be invoiced to the clients are capitalized until they are finally sold. Sales of moulds
are recognised when they are homologated by the client.

i Forcign Currencies

Functional and presentational currency
Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). Company’s functional
currency is Euro (EUR).

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date (Refer Note 2.1). Exchange differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the mitial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on (ransfation of non-monetary items measured at talr value 1s treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OCI or the statement of profit and loss are also recognized in OCI or the statement of profit
and loss, respectively).

j- Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the
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fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment
and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
Sales of parts are recognised on shipment to customers and includes net amount excluding value added tax.

In consignment stocks at the client’s warehouse, sales are recognised upon self-billing/consumption advice
from the client.
Sales of moulds are recognised when they are homologated by the client.

Dividends
Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established by the reporting date.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. Where the normal operating cycle cannot be identified, it is assumed to have a duration of
twelve months.

k. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authoritics. The tax rates and tax laws used Lo compule the amount are those thal are enacled or
substantively enacted, at the reporting datc.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Neferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bhases of assets
and liahilities and their carrying amounts tor tinancial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred Lax liabilities are recognized tor all taxable temporary ditferences.
Deferred tax assets are recognized on carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused (ax losses is strong evidence (hat [ulure laxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset
only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax
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m.

assets — unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Provisions for taxation have been made in accordance with Dutch corporate income tax law,
Segment reporting
Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The Company is
primarily engaged in the manufacture of aluminium high pressure die cast parts for the automotive sector. All
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. Further export turnover of the Company is
less than 10% of the total turnover; therefore, disclosure relating to geographical segment is also not applicable.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings / (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the
reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events
of bonus issue, if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares except where the results will be anti-dilutive.

Provisions (Other than employee benefits)
General provisions

Pravisions are recognized when the Company has a present abligation (lepat or constrictive) as a resnlt of a past
event, il is probable that an outllow of resources embodying economic benefils will be required Lo sellle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed the expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss net of any reimbursement. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The unwinding of the discounl is recognized as finance cosl. Expected [uture operating losses are not
provided for.
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r.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Other provision

Accidental environmental liabilities are covered by the liability insurance.

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.
Employee benefits

According the sector social agreement (Convenio Side rometalurgico de la provinciade Barcelona) the company
pays 2 additional payrolls in June and December. The 2 additional payments, as well as the holidays payroll are
provisioned every month on accrual basis.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals and accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and cheques on hand, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank, cash on hand
and cheques on hand as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an ltem not at fait value through
profit and loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

- Amortized cost;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVOCT’) - debt instrument;
- FVOCI - equity investment; or

-FVTPL
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
-the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

-the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCl is re-classified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrcvocably clect to
present subscquent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as I'VOCI — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the porttolio and the operation ot those policies 1n practice, ‘I'hese mclude
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate protile, matching the duration ot'the tinanclal assets to the duration ot any related liabilities or expecied cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.
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Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment ‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers:

- contingents events that would change the amounts or timings of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non - recourse features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, as feature that permits
or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but
unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is
treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at
amotrtized cost

Debt investment at
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured al amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest income, forcign cxchange gaing and logses ure
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is reccognized in
profit or loss.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit

or loss.

Equity investment at
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Tinancial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in protit or loss.
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iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVOCI — debt instruments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial asscts carricd at amortized cost and debt
instruments at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or mote events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit — impaired includes the following observable data:

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the halance sheet

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospecl of recovery. This is generally (he case when (he Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows Lo repay the amounts subject (o the
write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with Company’s procedures for the recovery of amount due.
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In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for the measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., deposits and advances

b. Trade receivables that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

¢. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the
financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual
term of the financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. ‘I'his amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

o Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheel. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet,
i.e. as a liability.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

s. Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is
no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2021.
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3, Property, plant and equipment

Partic

Right-ol-use Assets* Plant and Equipmant Cffice equlpments Furnitures and Fixtures Tota)

Cost P

As at 1 April 2019 = 17,965.26 242,52 1.27 18,239.05
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments - 1,011.72 13.66 176 1,027.14
Additions 6,271.29 1,715.19 29,12 8,015.60
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 361.02 77.24 131 = 439,57
Disposals - 99.69 - 99.69
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments - 449 0.00 4.49
Foreign currency translation adjusment - 140.62 2.52 143,14
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 6.33 0.11 6.44
As at 31 March 2020 6,632.31 20,812.18 289.24 33.03 27,766.76
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 295,38 926,92 12.88 1.47 1,236.65
Additlons 895.18 1,731.09 18.49 2,644.76
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments -4.94 -9.56 -0.10 -14.60
Disposals 297.18 12.26 309.44
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments -1.64 -0.07 -1.71
Foreign currency translatlon adjusment ~109.03 474,87 -8.98 -592.88
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 0.60 2.63 0,05 1,28
As at 31 March 2021 7,708.50 22,692 8% 249,349 24,50 3073624
Depreciatlon

As at 1 April 2019 3,366.49 81.22 3,447.71
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 189,59 4.57 194.16
Charge for the year 638.92 1,436.84 33.30 2,109.06
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 28.77 69,71 1.50 99.98
Deductions - 20.19 20.19
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 091 0.00 0.91
Foreign translation Adjustment 17.68 0.40 18.08
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 0.80 0.00 0.80
As at 31 March 2020 667.69 5,060.01 120.99 S 5,848.69
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 29.74 225.36 5.39 - 260.49
Charge for the year 678.84 1,583.21 31.14 = 2,293.19
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments -3.75 -11.37 -0.17 = -15.29
Deductions 177.58 12.26 189.84
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments -0.98 -0,07 - -1,05
Foreign translation Adjustment -6.89 -81.82 -2.42 - -91.13
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 0.04 ) 0.45 0.01 - 0.50
As at 31 March 2021 1,365.67 s 6,599.24 - ~8,107.66
Het block

As at 31 March 2021 6,343.83 16,093.61 156.64 34,50 22,628.58
As at 31 March 2020 5,964.62 15,752.17 168.25 33.03 21,918.07

*Refer note vii under Other Notes
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4. Intangible assets

Computer Technical

Particulars
software Know How

Gross block

As at 1 April 2019 125.45 125.45
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 7.06 7.06
Additions 40.21 40.21
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 1.81 1.81
Disposals -

Add/Less: Foreign translation Adjustment 0.24 0.24
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 0.01 0.01
As at 31 March 2020 174.78 - 174.78
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 7.78 - 7.78
Additions 21.74 373.74 395.48
Add/tess: FCTR Adjustments -0.12 -2.06 -2.18
Disposals - - -
Add/Less: Foreign translation Adjustment -0.77 - -0.77
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments - = =
As at 31 March 2021 203.41 371.68 575.09
Amortization

As at 1 April 2019 65.50 65.50
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 3.69 3.69
Charge for the year 25.18 25.18
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments | 1.13 1.13
Disposals -

Add/Less: Forcign translation Adjustment 0.05 0.05
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2020 95.55 - 95.55
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 4.26 - 4.26
Charge for the year 34.25 31.07 65.32
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments -0.19 -0.17 -0.36
Disposals - - -
Add/Less: Foreign translation Adjustment -0.40 - -0.40
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments = 5 =
As at 31 March 2021 133.47 30.90 164.37
Net block

As at 31 March 2021 69.94 340.78 410.72
As at 31 March 2020 79.23 - 79.23
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5. Financial assets

A Loans
Securily deposils

Other advances
Doubtlul

Less: Provision for doublful advance
Total loans

Break up of total foans
(a) Secured, considered good;
(b) Unsecured, considered good; and
{c) Doubtlul
Provision far doubtful receivables
Currenl
Non-current
B Trade receivables
Trade receivables
Toval Tride recewabijes
C Cash and cash equivalent
Balances wilh banks:
—On current accounls
Cash on hand

Total Cash and cash equivalent

Current
Non-current

Tolal linancial assels {A+B+C})

6. Inventories

Particulirs

Raw materials

Work in progress

Finished roods

Stores and sparcs

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Total inventories at Lhe lower ol cost and net realisable value

7. Other assets

Patlciikirs 31 March 2021

A Other advances
Unsecured, considered good.

| otal advances
J essiProvision lor doublful caoital advances

i Pritinhd papedses
Pregad espences

(= Balance with statulory / poverament authorities
Unsecured, considered good

Less:Provision for other doubtful advances

D Other assets
Advance income-tax [net of provision for taxation}

Total other assets {A+B+C+D)

Current
Non-current

8. Share Capital

(% afiTharizen shore capual (fauny)

Farticulins Ny, fi lGEs

At 1 April 2019

32,48,403 Equity shares of EUR 1 each
Increase/(decrease) during the year
At 31 March 2020
Increase/(decrease) during the year
As at 31 March 2021

fl Issued, sutscnbed and tally, past sqiity cagial

20581

137446

1.58027

1,580.27

1.580.27

1,580.27

1,580.27

1,374.46
205.81

4,158.36

4.158.36

355.63

317

358.80

5.891 62
20581

6,097.43

31 March 2021

424 .63
2,326.80
1.456.52
352742
7.735.37

(47.23)
7,688.14

135,68
145 b4

135,68

56,34
hh, 34

BbR.96
866.96

BE6.96

1,50
150
1,062.48

926,80
135,68

3248
3248

3248

hd020

162.54

905 62

1,068 16

1,068.16

1,068 16

1.068.16

1.068.16

897.77
17039

2,898 22

2,898.22

144.73

310

147.83

3.943.82
170.39

4,114.21

31065
2,353.71
140061
3.369.77
7.434.74
{45.22)
7,389.52

23.05
23.05

43,05

LR L]
3.4

48846

488.46

488 46

3282

3282

577.57

554.52
23.05

EUR 3248403

EUR 3248403

EUR 3248403

| rartielas W Nomucs_ ] Aoyt

At L Apnil 2u1Y

Changes during the period
At 31 March 2020
Changes during the period
As at 31 March 2021

J2.44

3248

3248

2,143.37

2,143.37

2,143 37



C Appregine number of b of dapes Weapd, shire bsued for conyidemiipn dther than cash & shave bought ek duging the pesiod of Inve yeais immodiately prrceding Uie reportinig dite

a1 Mareh 3071

Narme of the shaneholier

Ampunt
Equity shares aliotied as fully paid bonus shares by capitallzation of reserves 629 6.29

9. Other equity
Wesarves and Surhos

i sarnings Sechrity Premium It"’v’n\ril".'l: L””:: i Total '1‘"""
anslalion leeservie Bylity
As at 31 March 2020 1,031.81 33064 61647 1,978.92
As at 31 March 2021 1,391.04 33064 649.53 2,37121

(Thls space I intentionally left blank)
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10. Borrowings

A.

Non-current borrowings

EUR Loan from Santander (Corporate guarantee from STL){Unsecured) 10.75 66.87
EUR Loan multiple bankers ICO COVID19 (Unsecured) 2,446.80

EUR Credit multiple bankers ICO COVID19 {Unsecured) 1,722.25

USD Loan from Banamex (Secured) 1,283.00

EUR Loan from ICF {Unsecured) 2,149.03

EUR Loan from ICICI Bank (Secured) 1,538.70

Lease financing loans from financial institutions {Secured} 772.56 830.68
Total non-current borrowings 9,923.08 897.55
Secured 3,594.27 830.68
Unsecured 6,328.82 66.87
Current borrowings

EUR Loan from Santander (Corporate guarantee from STL}{Unsecured) 59.10 56.58
EUR Loan multiple bankers ICO COVID19 (Unsecured) 33.57

USD Loan from Banamex {Secured) 183.29

EUR Loan from B. Popular {Unsecured}) 27.56
Lease financing loans from financial institutions (Secured) 453.96 456.46
Total Current maturity of foreign currency loan 729.92 540.60
Secured 637.25 456.46
Unsecured 92.67 84,14
b) Cash credit from banks (Unsecured)*

Cash credit/WCDL/Buyer's line of credit from banks (secured by CL, CGT or SBLC from 7,073.75 14,712.93
STL or by invoices financed)

Total current borrowings 7,803.67 15,253.53
Less: Amount presented under "other financial liabilities" (729.92) {540.60)
Total current borrowings 7,073.75 14,712.93

Terms of borrowings: 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(i) EUR loan from Santander carries interest @ 1.95% p.a. repayable in 24 monthly
instalments of Eur 6,250 (plus interest) from May 2020 to April 2022 69.85

(i} EUR loan from B. Popular {Corporate guarantee from Parent company), carries
interest @ 3.7% p.a., repayable in monthly instalment of EUR 6,759 from Sep 17. it
has been fully repaid in August 2020

(iii) EUR loan from ICF carries interest @ 2.5% p.a. repayable in 48 monthly

instalments of Eur 54,785 from September 2020 to August 2025 2,149.03

(iv) Lease financing loans from financial institutions (Some of which with Comfort
letter from Parent company), carries interest @ 1.75% to 4.28%, monthly instalment 1,226.52
ranging from Eur 146 to EUR 7,474. (Secured)

{v) EUR loan multiple bankers ICO COVID19 carries interest @ 1.5% to 3.55%

{average 2%}, repayable from 3 ta 5 years in monthly instalment ranging from Eur 4,202.62
3,222 W EUR 19,212

{vi) USD Loan trom Banamex in STM (SBLC guarantee trom STL) carries interest of 1

month USD Libor+1.4% payable in 16 quarterly installments of USD 125,000 from July 1,466.29
2021 to January 2025

(vii) EUR loan from ICICI Bank (Corporate guarantee from Parent company), carries
interest of 3.25% repayable from in 17 quarterly installments of EUR 100,240 (plus
interest) from March 2022 to March 2026 and a last installment of EUR 85,920 (plus
interest) in June 2026

1,538.70

123.45

27.56

1,287.14

*The above working capital line of credit from banks are secured by SBLC and Corporate Guarantee provided from Sandhar Technologies Limited and

Invoices tinanced carrying interest ranging from 1% to 4% .
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11. Trade payables

Trade payable 5,885.71 5,144.47
Total trade payables 5,885.71 5,144.47

12. Other liabilities

Other payables:

Current

Statutory dues 325.52 252.88
Other Payables 560.17 506.92
Total 885.69 759.80

13. Other financial liabilities

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

A. Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Payables for capital goods 559.07 752.58
Advance from customers 1,636.29 1,084.61
Current maturity of long term loans (refer note 10) 729.92 540.60
Security deposit payable - 28.80
Lease Liabilities-current 489.83 659.37
Lease Liabililies-non current 6,305.05 5,749.58
Tolal linancial liabilities at amortised cost 9,720.16 8,815.54
Current 3,219.15 2,690.18

Non-current 6,501.01 6,125.36



Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Amount in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

14. Revenue From Operations

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Sale of products 26,455.90 28,714.79
Sale of services 16.87 174.24
Other operating revenue
Scrap sale 232.09 185.00
Total 26,704.86 29,074.03
Total 26,704.86 29,074.03

15. Other income

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Other non-operating income

Profit on sale of fixed assets 4.06

Government grant 1.13

Others 149.03 3.28
154.22 3.28

16. Cost of raw material and components consumed

A. 'Raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year 310.65 320.82
Add: Purchases 7,003.58 6,337.67
7,314.23 6,658.49
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 424.63 310.65
Cost af raw material and compnanents constimed 6,889 A0 6,347 .84
Adjustment on account of exchange difference 10.77 17.80
Cost ot raw material and components consumed L,900.37 6,365.64

B. {Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress, scrap and components

31 Viarch 2021 31 Viarch 2020

Closing inventories

Finished goods 1,456.52 1,400.61

Work in progress 2,326.80 2,353.71

Adjustment on account of exchange difference 44.22 (174.73)
Opening inventories

Finished goods 1,400.61 1,293.12

Work in progress 2,353.71 3,309.44

Adjuslinent on account of exchange difference 174.77 40,24
Net Increase/ (Decrease) {(101.55) (1,072.21)

17. Employee Benefits Expense

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Salaries, bonus and allowances 4,926,87 1,718.04
Social Security [xpense 1,253.,00 1,217.75
Staff welfare expenses 379.14 438,80

6,559.01 6,374.59




18. Depreciation and amortization expense

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets (note 3) 1,614.35 1,470.14
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (note 3) 678.84 638.92
Amortisation on intangible fixed assets (note 4) 65.32 25.18

2,358.51 2,134.24

19. Other expenses

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Consumption of stores and spares 3,289.96 5,238.68
Packing material 259.91 239.71
Job work charges 1,917.86 2,031.78
Rent 44,83 37.64
Vehicle Hire Charges 47.24 40.86
Rates and taxes 76.50 63.69
Insurance 164.47 98.53
Freight and forwarding charges 552.09 528.28
Power and fuel 1,759.71 1,846.85
Repairs and maintenance

- Buildings 71.58 72.51

- Plant & machinery 493.28 406.26

- Others 276.69 280.23
Legal & professional charges 275.29 266.00
Travelling and conveyance 15.38 77.13
Payment to auditor* 19.93 25.96
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 23.47 -
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net) 42.92 45.14
Miscellaneous expenses 597.94 441.11
Total other expenses 9,929.05 11,740.36

Payment to auditors:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

As auditor:
- Audit fee 19,93 25.96

19.93 25.96

20. Finance Costs

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Interest to banks on

-Term loan 195.23 52.94

- Others 217.32 353.56
412.55 406.50

Interest to others - 11.92
Cash discounting charges 16.30 36.92
Bank charges 95,00 159.76
Interest on lease liabilities 137.68 134.96

Total finance costs 661.53 /50.06
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21, Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of

Equity shares outstanding during the year

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 359.23
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Earning per Share (Basic 3248
& Diluted)

Earning Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs} 11.06
Face value per share EUR 1/- each

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Basic and Diluted earnings per share:

Number Of equuy Shares

Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 per share:

As at 1 April 2020 32.48
Issued during the year 2020-21 -
As at 31 March 2021 32.48

(This space is intentionally left blank)

547.86

3248

16.87

EUR 1/- each

Weighted average
number of shares
3248

32.48
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Other Notes

ii.

Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture of aluminium high pressure die cast parts for the
automotive sector. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. The operating
segment of the Company is identified to be “Automotive components” as the Company’s Chief reviews business
performance at an overall Company level as one segment. Further export turnover of the Company is less than
10% of the total turnover; therefore, disclosure relating to geographical segment is also not applicable.

Accordingly, as the company operates in a single business and geographical segment, the reporting requirements
for primary and secondary disclosures under Indian Accounting Standard - 108 Operating Segment have not been
provided in the financial statements.

Related Party disclosures

Name of the major related parties and related party relationship:

Parent Company Sandhar Technologies Limited

Sandhar Tooling Private Limited
Sandhar Strategic System Pvt Ltd

Subsidiaries of Parent company

Joint Ventures Indo Tooling Pvt Limited (upto 9 October 2020)
Sandhar Hansung Technologies Pvt Ltd
Sandhar Ecco Green Energy Pvt Ltd.
Jinyoung Sandhar Mechatronics Pvt Ltd
Sandhar Amkin Industries Pvt Ltd
Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Pvt Ltd.
Sandhar Daeshin Auto Systems Private Limited
Sandhar Whetron Electronics Private Limited
Kwangsung Sandhar Technologies Private Limited
_Winnercom Sandhar Technologies Private L.imited
Sandhar Han Shin Automotive Private Limited
Kwangsung Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Subsidiary of Kwangsung Sandhar Technologies Private
Limited)
Sandhar Han Shin Auto Technologies Private Limited
Sandhar Daeshin Technologies Private Limited
(w.e.f. 29 July 2020)
Daewha India Private Limited (w.e.f. 29 January 2021)

Sandhar Autotech Private Limited (w.e.f. 27 January 2021)

Sanjeevani Impex Private Limited

Sandhar Intelli-Glass Solutions Limited
Sandhar Info Systems Limited
‘Sandhar Estate Private Limited

Y'SG Fstates Private Limited
Enterprises under common control Sandhar Enterprises

KDB Investment Private Limited
Jubin Finance & Investment Limited
Haridwar Estates Private Limited
Raasaa Retail Private Limited
Supanavi Trading Private Limited

Individual owning an interest in the voting power of
parent company that gives them significant | Mr Jayant Davar
influence over the Company
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a) Transactions that have taken place during the period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021 with related parties by

iil.

Note: Figures in brackets represent amounts for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities:

the Company.
| Nature of Transactions - Subsidiaries of parent Parent Total
company company
Reimbursement of financial charges _
STL (Reimbursement of charges for providing SBLC in connection with Term NIL NIL
Loan / Working Capital facilities being availed by STB. (NIL) (NIL) |
b) Outstanding balances as at 31st March 2021 with related parties
Nature of Balance (EUR) Parent company Total
Outstanding Receivable
Sandhar Technologies Limited NIL NIL
(42.33) (42.33)

There are no claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts. There are no legal disputes, except for some

minor labour claims.

Year Ended 31 March 2021

Case Description Type & 1D No. ~ Status Amount of Dispute
The worker of an outsourced
F.C. | Claim of damages 37512016 company filed a court claim against 20.090 EUR Within the scope of
company. Trial postponed for | the liability insurance
December 2021
Claim to 257/2017, .. Nil. If the worker wins the main
All  provisionally filed, Except ” N
M.G permanent 78/2018, 691/2018 pending appeal. September responsible is the  Mutual
"7 | disablement 689/2018, 2021 1 & appeal, Sep Insurance Company for Accidents
| benefits 691/2018 _ at Work —
Claim of
S.G. |redundancy and 457/2018, 448/18 | Trial September 2021 9,319.56 EUR
amount
7 th
0.D. | Claim of amount 384/18 Uil 9 2 S Heinaii 8 |6 5z s oy
August 2020

The estimated amount of the contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) is:

SUPPLIER Amt. In INR
AED-AUTOMATION, GMBH 142.19
ATM 2000, S.L. 98.86
AUTOMATION IN FOUNDRIES, S.L. 16.33
AXELENT SPAIN, S.A.U. 3.65
BOYFRE, S.L. 0.42
BRAMMER IBERICA, S.A. 2.68
BRECNEEDS, S.L. 3.71
BUHLER BRESCIA S.R.L. 325.74
BUHLER, S.A. 28.15
COMPUTER PC-21, S.L. 0.33
DIESSE PRESSE, S.R.L. 83.81
DISENO, CONSTRUCCION Y REPARACION 20.35
DISENO, PROGRAMACION Y REPARACION 1.38
ELECTRICA GUELL, S.A. 31.77
ELEKTRA CATALUNYA XXI, S.L. 0.45




vi.

vii.
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| ENTERPRISE QUALITY MANAGEMENT, S.L. 6.87
Esclopeter World Trading, S.L.U, 62.26 |
EVEC, S.A. 1.89
FANUC IBERIA, S.L.U. 28.70 |
FINSERAL INGENIERIA Y SERVICIOS S.C 0.34
FUNDACIO PRIVADA CENTRE CIM 0.11 |
GRAELLS & LLONCH INVEST SA 205.11
KROWN, S.A. 57.34
MASTERTEC, S.A. 5.33
MECANO PENEDES, S.L. 11.72
METALFLOW, S.A. 4.00
METROLOGIA SARIKI, S.A. - 1.25
MP CONSTRUCCIONES Y MONTAIJES, S.L. 2.06
PENEDES INDUSTRIAL, S.L. 0.46
Raga Engineers 10.87
SERVEIS ELECTRICS IND.CONNECT, S.L. _13.02
SINERGES TECMON, S.A. 15.06
SMZ S.L. 10.49
SSI SCHAFER SHOP GmbH 0.77
STRUERS SUCURSAL EN ESPANA 6.14

_TECNOAIR AIRE COMPRIMIDO, S.L. 10.10
VOESTALPINE HIGH PERFORMANCE METALS 6.60

| XARXES DE TELECOM.ALTERNATIVES, SL. 0.50
Total 1,220.81

Remuneration to Directors

Nil
Audit fees
315t March 2021 31%¢ March 2020
Audit Fees 19.93 25.96
Production, Sales and Stock of Finished Goods
31 March 2021
Descrintion Opening (Nos.) Production Closing (No.) Sales Quantit Sales Value
—eseription 31/03/2020 (Nos.) 31/03/2021 (Nos.) (INR)
el Cizse 51.23 301.46 4535 307.34 13,318.40
components
Wiper systems components 16.19 59.82 16.26 59.75 5,655.65
Others Components | 5.32 46.87 6.29 45.91 6,125.01
Total 72.74 408.15 67.90 413.00 25.099.06
Leases

6 The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' effective from 1 April 2019 and applied the standard to its leases.
In adopting Ind AS 116, the Company has applied the below practical expedients:

The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

(i) The Company has discounted lease payments using the applicable incremental borrowing rate as at
1 April 2019, which is 2.18% (STB) and 3.45% (STM) for measuring the lease liability.
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(iii)  Impact of Ind AS 116 on the statement of profit and loss:
Particulars For the ended For the ended |
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest on Lease liabilities (refer note 20) 137.68 134.96
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 18) 678.84 638.92
Impact on the statement of profit and loss 816.52 773.88
(iv)  Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

(v)  Setout below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Right of Use Assets For the ended For the ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening Balance 5,964.62 -
Addition 895.18 6,271.29
FCTR Adjustment on addition 182.01 361.02
Depreciation Expense (678.84) (638.92)
FCTR Adjustment on depreciation - (19.14) | (28.77)
As at 31 March 2020 6,343.83 5,964.62

Lease Liability For the ended For the ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
As at 1 April 2019 6,408.95 -
Addition 895.18 6,673.51
Accretion of interest 137.68 134.96
 Payments during the year (646.63) (399.52)
As at 31 March 2020 6,794.88 6,408.95

(vi)

viii. l'inancial Instruments- I'air Values

Refer note viii for contractual maturities of lease liabilities.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Financial assets
A. | Amortised Cost:
Security deposit paid 205.81 162.54 205.81 162.54
Other advances 1,374.46 905.62 1,374.46 905.62
Total 1.580.27 1.068.16 1.580.27 1,068.16
Kinancial tiabilities
B. | Amortised Cost:
| Borrowings I
| Loans - 17.726.76 16,151.08 17.726.76 16,151.08
Lease liabilities 6.794.88 6.408.95 6.794.88 6.408.95
Total 24,521.64 22.560.03 24,521.64 22,560.03

The management assessed that the fair values of short term financial assets and liabilities significantly approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Accordingly, management has not disclosed
fair values for financial instruments such as trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other current

assets, interest accrued on fixed deposits, other current liabilities

etc.
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The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised with in the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.

as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

A. Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2021:

Particulars Total Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable unobservable
inputs inputs
_— (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at FVTPL: N
Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares - - -
Assets measured at amortised cost for which fair
values are disclosed (refer note vii):
Security deposit paid 205.81 - - 205.81
Other advances 1.374.46 - - 1,374.46
Liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair
values are disclosed (refer note vii): -
Loans 17,726.76 - - 17,726.76
Lease liabilities 6,794.88 - - 6,794.88

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

B. Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2020:

Particulars Total Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at FVTPL: o
Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares - - -
Assets measured at amortised cost for which fair
values are disclosed (refer note vii):
Security deposit paid 162.54 - . 162.54
Other advances 905.62 - - 905.62
Liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair
values are disclosed (refer note vii):
Loans 16,151.08 - - 16,151.08
Leasc liabilities 6,408.95 - - 6.408.95

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair valuc mcasurcments,

ix. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and assembling of automotive components such as lock-set,
mirrors and various sheet metal components including cabins for two wheelers, four wheelers and off road vehicle
industry. The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprises loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and
finance lease obligation. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to support the Company’s operations. The
Company’s principal financial assets include investments in equity, employee advances, trade and other receivables,
security deposits, cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The Company also enters into
derivative transactions viz. CCIRS and Principal Swaps.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments
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- Market risk (see (b));
- Credit risk (see (c)); and
- Liquidity risk (see (d)).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact
of hedge accounting in the financial statements.

a) Risk Management Framework

The Company’s activities make it susceptible to various risks. The company has taken adequate measures to
address such concerns by developing adequate systems and practices. The Company’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of markets and seeks to manage the impact of these risks on the
Company’s financial performance.

The Company’s senior management oversee the management of these risks and advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance to the
shareholders that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk
objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the
appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for
speculative purposes may be undertaken.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and company’s activities. The company, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the audit committee.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed o and how the entity manages the risk and the
impact of hedge accounting in the financial statements

| Risk Exposure arising {rom Measurement Management of risk il
Credit Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, Ageing analysis, Diversification of bank deposits,
Risk derivative financial instruments, financial assets Credit ratings credit limits and letter of credit.

_| measured at amortised cost.
Liquidity Borrowings and liabilities Cash flow Availability of  borrowing
Risk forecasting, facilities.
Sensitivity
analysis

b) Market Risk

¢)

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises following types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, price risk,
and commodily risk. Financial instruments aflfected by market risk include loans and borrowings, investment,
deposits, advances and derivative tinancial insttuments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with fixed interest rates.

Interest Rate sensitivity

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates al the reporting date would have increased
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.
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| Particulars Increase / decrease in basic points | Profit or loss | Profit or loss (net of tax)
31 March 2021 B
Secured term loan from banks | 100 42.32 31.67
Cash credit from bank 100 70.74 52.93
Other borrowings 100 64.21 48.05
Secured term loan from banks (100) (42.32) (31.67) ]
Cash credit {from bank L (100) | (7074 (52.93) |
Other borrowings (100) 64.21) (48.05)
Particulars Increase / decrease in basic points | Profit or loss | Profit or loss (net of tax) |
31 March 2020
Secured term loan from banks 100 12.87 I 9.63
Cash credit from bank . 100 147.13 110.10 |
Other borrowings 100 1.51 1.13

_Secured term loan from banks | (100) (12.87) (9.63) |
Cash credit from bank (100) (147.13) (110.10)
Other borrowings (100) (1.51) (1.13)

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)
and borrowings in foreign currency (ECB borrowings).

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposures:

Import Trade Payables

Foreign Currency INR (Rs.)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
USD 0.23 3.93 16.67 293.95
| EURO - 2.83 - 233.10
MXN - 10.72 - 33.72
TOTAL 16.67 560.77
Export Trade Receivable
Foreign Currency INR (Rs.)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
MXN 54.87 0.64 196.06 2.00
EUR 0.07 - 6.15 -
TOTAL 202.21 2.00

The following significant exchange rates were applied at the year-end:

Particulars Year-end rates
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR/USD 73.2973 74.8109
INR/ EUR 85.9611 82.2959
INR/ MXN 3.5734 3.1456

Sensitivity Analysis

Any changes in the exchange rate of foreign currency against INR is not expected to have significant impact on the
Company's profit due to the short credit period. Accordingly, a 1% appreciation/depreciation of the INR as
indicated below, against the USD, EUR, MXN would have increased/reduced profit by the amounts shown below.
This analysis is based on the foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be
reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other variable remains constant.
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Particulars | Change in Nature of | Year-end | Changes Net Effect on Effect on profit
currency rate Exposure | rates in rates exposure | profit before | after tax (INR)
B USD tax (INR)
As at 31 INR/USD 73.2973 0.7330 0.23 0.17) 0.12)
March Increases by 1 % B
2021 INR/USD ‘ 73.2973 (0.7330) 0.23 0.17 0.12
Decreases by 1 % EpoT
Y224 Trade g
As at 31 INR/USD bl 74.8109 0.7481 3.93 (2.94) (2.20)
March Increases by 1 % payables
2020 INR/USD 74.8109 (0.7481) 3.93 2.94 2.20
8 Decreases by 1 %
Particulars | Change in Nature of | Year-end | Changes Net Effect on Effect on profit
currency rate Exposure | rates in rates exposure | profit before | after tax (INR)
. EURO tax (INR)
As at 31 INR/EURO 85.9611 0.8596 - - -
March Increases by 1 % 5
2021 INR/EURO 85.9611 (0.8596) - - -
Decreases by 1 % Import
4 Trade |-
As at 31 INR/EURO bles 82.2959 0.8230 2.83 (2.33) (1.74)
March Decreases by 1 % paya | )
2020 INR/EURO 82.2959 (0.8230) 2.83 233 1.74
L Decreases by 1 %
| Particulars Change in Nature of Year-end | Changes Net Effect on Effect on profit
currency rate Exposure rates in rates exposure | profit before | after tax (INR)
MXN tax (INR)
As at 31 INR/MXN 3.5734 0.0357 - - -
March Increases by 1 %
2021 g\IR/MXN . It 3.5734 (0.0357) - - -
ecreases by 1 % Trade
As at 31 INR/MXN — 3.1456 0.0315 10.72 (0.34) (0.25)
March Increases by 1 % RS .
2020 INR/MXN 3.1456 (0.0315) 10.72 0.34 0.25
Decreases by 1 %
Particulars | Change in Nature of Year-end | Changes Net Effect on Effect on profit
currency rate Exposure rates in rates exposure profit before | after tax (INR)
MXN tax (INR)
As at 31 INR/MXN 3.5734 0.0357 54.87 1.96 1.47
March Increases by 1 %
2021 INR/MXN E 3.5734 (0.0357) 54.87 (1.96) (1.47)
Decreases by 1 % xport
Trade
As at 31 INR/MXN Receivables 3.1456 0.0315 0.64 0.02 0.01
March Decreases by | %
2020 INR/MXN 3.1456 (0.0315) 0.64 (0.02) (0.01)
Decreases by 1 %
Particulars | Change In Nature of Year-end | Changes Net Effect vn Effect on profit
currency rale Expusure 1ates in rates exposure | profit before | after tax (INR)
EUR tax (INR)
As at 31 INR/EURO 85.9611 0.8596 0.07 0.06 0.05
March Increases by 1 %
2021 INR/EURO 85.9611 (0.8596) 0.07 (0.06) (0.05)
Decreases by 1 % [Puvig
= Trade —
As at 31 INR/EURO Receivables B - - - -
March Decreases by 1 % |
2020 INR/EURO - - - - -
Decreases by 1 %
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d)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer

contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables), including foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Ind AS requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company assesses at each date
of statements of financial position whether a financial asset or a company of financial assets is impaired. The
Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute
a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12
months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Before accepting any new customer, the Company assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
Jimits to customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed on periodic basis. The Company performs
credit assessment for customers on an annual basis and recognizes credit risk, on the basis lifetime expected losses
and where receivables are due for more than six months.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the finance department in accordance
with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only in schemes of alternate investment fund/or
other appropriate avenues including term and recurring deposits with approved counterparties and within credit limits
assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an
annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through
counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Company places its cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks with high investment grade
ratings, limits the amount of credit exposure with any one bank and conducts ongoing evaluation of the credit
worthiness of the banks with which it does business. Given the high credit ratings of these banks, the Company
does not expect these banks to fail in meeting their obligations.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, buyers credit and bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to
refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of
funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

x. CIF Value of imports

“Particulars = Period ended Period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 oo
EUR usbp EUR USD

Tools and Spares (STB) 193 0.16 2.35 H.u/
Capex (STM) - - 1.06 081

Capex (S'TB) 0.19 1.30 - -

Raw Material (STM) B - - 1.33 -

Stores & Spares (STM) 0.19 0.36 - =
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xi. Expenditure incurred in foreign currency
Particulars ~ Period ended Period ended
- o o - e 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
| USD | EUR | GBP | MXN | USD | EUR | MXN
Store and Spares (STB) 0.07 - - - 0.07 - -
| Raw Material (STM) - - - - - 1.34 -
Legal Services (STM) - 0.03 | - 24.06 - 0.02 | 18.19
Plant Rental (STM) - - - 2.26 - - 2.36
| Job Work (STB) 0.35 - - - 0.35 - 0.34
Job Work (STM) - - - 9.33 - - 6.70
Stores & Spares (STM) - 0.38 - 4.79 - 0.96 | 43.46
Insurance (STM) - - - 15.65 - - 5.02
Repair & Maintenance P&M (STM) - 0.08 - 41.79 - 0.04 | 28.67
Repairs and maintenance Buildings (STM) - - - 5.81 - - 4.65
Repairs and maintenance Others (STM) - (0.01) - 0.26 - 0.01 | 4.38
Freight (STM) - - - | 003 - - 2.18
CAPEX (STM) - 1.75 - 41.21 B 1.53 | 30.65
CAPEX (STB) 1.30 - - -
SBLC expenses (STM) - - - - - - -
Bank charges (STM) - - - 1.24 - 047 | 1.21
Bank charges (STB) 0.02 - - - - - -
Interest to banks (STM) - 0.38 - - - - -
Salary, wages and bonus (STM) - - - 188.75 - - 165.25 |
Social security expenses (STM) - - E 37.67 - - 33.61
Staff welfare expenses (STM) - - - 51.91 E - 60.74
Rates and taxes (STM) - - B 2.92 - - 1.63
Miscellaneous expenses (STM) - - - 12.67 - - 11.33
Travelling and conveyance (STM) - - - 1.12 - - 1.67
Environmental expenses (STM) - - - 5.86 B - 8.51
Power and fuel (STM) - - - 86.38 - - 84.47
Vehicle hire charges (STM) - - B 2.20 - - 1.94
Legal & professional (STB) 0.004 - 0.01 - - - -
Interest expense (STB) 0.03 - - - - - -
Packaging (STM) - 0.01 - 16.25 - - -
Congumables (STM) - 1,12 . 52,31 - - -
xii. Sales in foreign currency
Particulars Yean énded
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
USD | EUR | MXN | USD | EUR | MXN
Sale of Tools (STB) 6.14 - - |27.05] - -
Sale of Parts (STB) 13.90| - - 1392 - -
Sale of Parts (STM) - - - - - -
Sale of Scrap (STM) - - 6.68 - - 6.64
Other non-operating income (STM) | - - 0.30 - - 0.02

xill. Dividends

The Company has not declarcd/remitted any dividends during the period.

xiv. Gurantees given to third Parties

Nil
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XV. The Company’s operations and financial results for the year ended 31 March 2021 were adversely impacted by the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the consequent lockdown announced by the Government of India. The
operations have resumed with requisite precautions in place. The situation is continuously evolving, the impact
assessed may be different from the estimates made as at the date of approval of these financial results and
management will continue to monitor any material changes arising due to the impact of this pandemic on financial
and operational performance of the Company and take necessary measures to address the sjtuation.

Xvi. Previous year figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.
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